THIS IS AN OFFICIAL NH DHHS HEALTH ALERT

Distributed by the NH Health Alert Network DHHS.Health.Alert@dhhs.nh.gov December 29, 2023, 1500 (3:00 PM EDT) NH-HAN 202312291



Legionnaires' Disease Cases Associated with Mountain View Grand Resort in Whitefield, NH

Key Points and Recommendations:

- The New Hampshire Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) has identified two out-ofstate residents who were recently diagnosed with Legionnaires' disease after staying at the Mountain View Grand Resort in Whitefield, NH; an investigation is ongoing to assess potential sources of exposure.
- Healthcare providers should consider Legionella infection when evaluating communityacquired pneumonia and ask patients about travel (including local travel) in the 14 days prior to symptom onset.
- Diagnostic workup for Legionella infection should include both urine antigen testing (UAT) and respiratory specimen culture; if a patient is positive by UAT, then a respiratory Legionella culture should be obtained as soon as possible.
 - The New Hampshire Public Health Laboratories is available to support testing, if needed (see information below).
- Healthcare providers should report suspected and confirmed cases of Legionella infection to NH DPHS at 603-271-4496 (after hours 603-271-5300).

Background

Legionella bacteria are aerobic, gram-negative, intracellular pathogens that are commonly found in water and soil. Human infection is typically acquired through inhalation of contaminated water aerosols. Most Legionella infections are sporadic; however, outbreaks can occur and are often associated with exposure to contaminated communal water supplies in large facilities such as hospitals, hotels, or apartment buildings.

The two primary clinical syndromes caused by *Legionella pneumophila* are Legionnaires' disease (pneumonia) and Pontiac fever; the latter being an acute, nonspecific, self-limited febrile illness. Legionnaires' disease is a pneumonia characterized by fever, cough, shortness of breath, muscle aches, headaches, and pulmonary infiltrates consistent with pneumonia. Illness often is severe enough to require hospitalization and has an ulegionnaires'p to 10% fatality rate. Symptoms of Legionnaires' disease usually develop 2-14 days following exposure to an environmental source. Because of the self-limited and nonspecific nature of Pontiac fever, the epidemiology and pathogenesis of this disease are not as well characterized.

Legionella are estimated to cause about 2-10% of cases of community-acquired pneumonia, with a majority of cases occurring in adults >50 years old. In addition to older age, risk factors for Legionnaires' disease include smoking, chronic respiratory disease, diabetes mellitus, and other immunocompromising conditions.

Laboratory Diagnosis and Treatment

Diagnostic tests include urine antigen testing (which only detects *L. pneumophila* serogroup 1, accounting for 70-80% of infections) and culture of sputum or bronchoalveolar lavage fluid for *Legionella* bacteria. Culture requires special culture media (Buffered Charcoal Yeast Extract medium), which is not always routinely available. Respiratory specimens should be collected prior to antibiotic administration, if possible. The NH Public Health Laboratories (NH PHL) can support providers with *Legionella* culture. Laboratory testing can be arranged by calling the NH DPHS Bureau of Infectious Disease Control at 603-271-4496 (after hours 603-271-5300).

For patients with compatible or confirmed Legionnaires' disease, treatment with azithromycin or levofloxacin is recommended first-line therapy.

Additional Resources

CDC Materials for Providers: https://www.cdc.gov/legionella/clinicians.html

For any questions regarding this notification, please call the NH DHHS, DPHS, Bureau of Infectious Disease Control at (603) 271-4496 during business hours (8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m.).

If you are calling after hours or on the weekend, please call the New Hampshire Hospital switchboard at (603) 271-5300 and request the Public Health Professional on-call.

To change your contact information in the NH Health Alert Network, please send an email to DHHS.Health.Alert@dhhs.nh.gov or visit www.nhhan.org.

Status: Actual

Message Type: Alert

Severity: Moderate Sensitivity: Not Sensitive

Message Identifier: NH-HAN 202312291

Delivery Time: 12 hours

Acknowledgement: No

Distribution Method: Email, Fax

Distributed to: Physicians, Physician Assistants, Practice Managers, Infection Control

Practitioners, Infectious Disease Specialists, Community Health Centers, Hospitals, Hospital CEOs, Hospital Emergency Departments, EMS, Nurses, NHHA, Pharmacists, Laboratory Response Network, Manchester Health Department, Nashua Health Department, Public Health Networks, DHHS Outbreak Team, DPHS Investigation Team, DPHS Management Team, Northeast State Epidemiologists, Zoonotic Alert Team, Health Officers, Deputy Health Officers, MRC, NH Schools, EWIDS, Dialysis & Transplant Clinics, STD Clinics, Immunization Practices, Travel Centers, Influenza Sentinels, Urgent Care Centers, Ambulatory Surgical Centers, Walk-in Clinics, Poison Center, Alcohol and Other Drug Treatment Centers, Long-

Term Care Facilities, Community Mental Health Centers, Health

Departments, Internal Medicine, Occupational Health, Gastroenterology, Schools and Daycare Providers, Regional Public Health Networks, Environmental Services, Family Planning Programs, Department of Corrections, Home Care Providers, Local and State Partners, Area

Agencies

From: Dr. Benjamin P. Chan. MD. MPH – NH State Epidemiologist

Originating Agency: NH Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health

Services

Follow us on Twitter @NHIDWatch